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Financial Performance
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Growth (%)

YEAR

Investment Portfolio

Listed securities, 41.29%
Listed securities Overseas, 0.57%
Unlisted Investment, 12.39%
Managed funds, 0.98%
Short term Investments, 35.55%
Bonds, 5.79%
Cash, 3.43%

Portfolio by Sector
Communication/Information/Media 9.22%
Finance 10.62%
Manufacturing 12.49%
Cash & Fixed Interest Securities 37.01%
Bonds 8.04%
Retail 18.65%
Tourism 0.07%
Transportation 1.46%
Overseas 0.53%
Energy 0.31%
Managed Funds 0.98%
Education 0.62%

Signing of EDS MOU with MaiTV

FHUT Sales Executive with the
Tui Macuata, Mr. Wiliame Katonivere
at Labasa Office.

FHUT Sales Exective on his Financial
literacy Presentation.

FHUT Staff with his clients on
their money box initiative.
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Corporate Governance
In compliance with the Reserve Bank of Fiji’s (RBF) Corporate Governance Code for the Capital Markets, FHL Fund Management Limited
(FHL FML), the Fund Manager for Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (FHUT) acknowledges and supports this requirement and reports on the
Company’s Corporate Governance Code.
FHL FML Corporate Governance Code is aligned to the Fijian Holdings Limited (FHL) Code as a fully owned subsidiary.

Principle

FHL FML Comments

Establish Clear
Responsibilities for
Board Oversight

The FHUT Trust Deed stipulates the powers and duties of the Manager and the Trustees. The
FHL FML Articles of Association sets out the powers and duties of the Board to manage the
company effectively and efficiently. FHL FML continuously develops policy and guidelines to
strengthen its role.

Constitute an Effective
Board

The FHL FML Articles of Association covers the required constitution of the Board. Directors are
selected for their experience and competencies and are evaluated on their suitability for the
Board by the FHL Board of Directors.
FHL FML also has a Compliance Committee that addresses all compliance issues and
complaints. This committee meets quarterly and comprises of three independent members
and a representative from the Board of FHL FML.
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Appointment of a
General Manager

FHL FML structure including the appointment of the officer/s in charge is determined by the
Board and Holding Company of FHL FML.

Board and Company
Secretary

The Board appoints a suitable, qualified Company Secretary who is the administrative link
between the Board and the Management and is responsible for ensuring compliance with
regulatory requirements.

Timely and Balanced
reporting

FHUT complies with its disclosure obligations under the Fiji Companies Act 2015. FHL FML
Board meetings are held once every two months at the minimum, to update directors on the
Fund’s performance and to review and provide approvals and confirmations of key aspects of
the operations of the Fund

Promote Ethical and
Responsible Decisionmaking

FHL FML has adopted the FHL Group approved Code of Conduct that sets out the principles
of ethical behaviour by all group personnel. This ethical framework commits its directors,
employees, contractors and consultants to not only comply with the law, but to conduct
business in accordance with the highest ethical standards. FHL FML also ensures it complies
with the RBF Capital Markets policies and the Companies Act 2015 whereby directors and
employees of the Fund Manager cannot purchase units created by the Fund.

Register of Interests

Directors and Officers of the Fund Manager must disclose any conflict of interest that may arise
in the course of the business.

Respect the rights of
shareholders

FHUT complies with all disclosure requirements under the Trust Deed, Companies Act 2015 and
Capital Markets Decree 2009. FHL FML with the concurrence of the Trustees ensures that all
material changes made during the course of operations are communicated to unit holders in
a press release and individually through mail. FHL FML also conducts training sessions for the
unit holders upon request.

Accountability and
Audit

Financial statements of FHUT are audited annually by independent auditors who provide their
report to the unit holders. Regular internal audits are conducted by our Group Auditors on
operational matters whilst the RBF conducts routine on-site examination of the Fund.

Recognize and manage
risk

Based on the Funds operations FHL FML has developed a detailed procedures manual to manage
operational and data risks with appropriate controls and procedures. FHL FML continues to
review the Fund operations and develop appropriate mitigation strategies.

Evaluation of Board
Performances

FHL FML undertakes to conduct an evaluation of Board performance on an annual basis to
ensure that individual directors and the Board as a whole work efficiently and effectively in
achieving their functions.

Securities Trading
Policy

Based on the operations, the Company has established a policy that imposes certain restrictions
on FHL FML Directors, senior management and employees directly owning an investment
account with FHUT.

Insolvency – Directors
Duties

If the Company is insolvent or there is a real risk of insolvency, Directors duties expand to
include creditors (including employees with outstanding entitlements) such as:
The duty to exercise powers and duties with the care and diligence that a reasonable
•
person would have which includes taking steps to ensure the financial position of
the Company is properly informed and ensuring the Company doesn’t trade if it is
insolvent.
•
The duty to exercise powers and duties in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and for a proper purpose;
•
The duty not to improperly use position to gain a personal advantage or to cause
detriment to the Company.
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FHL Trustees Limited Directors

Mr. Inia Naiyaga

Mr. Emitai Boladuadua

Mr. Navin Raj

Inia Naiyaga is a Chartered
Account and was a Central Banker
for 40 years. He retired as the
Deputy Governor of the Reserve
Bank of Fiji in May 2014. Prior to
his retirement he also served
as the Deputy Governor of the
National Reserve Bank of Tonga
for 5 years and was a member of
the Executive Management team
of the Reserve Bank of Fiji for
25 years. He is a life-member of
the Fiji Institute of Accountants
(CA), a Fellow of the Fiji Institute
of Bankers, FFIB (Hon) and is a
member of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors, MAI CD.
He is also a former President of
the Fiji Institute of Accountants,
former President of the Institute
of Internal Auditors (Fiji Chapter)
and former President of the Fiji
Bank Employees Union. He has
also served as a Director of the Fiji
Electricity Authority and a Director
of Transparency International (Fiji
Chapter).

Mr. Emitai Boladuadua holds
a Bachelor of Science Degree
and a Diploma in Education
from the University of New
England, Armidale, Australia. Mr.
Boladuadua was a civil servant for
38 years, 25 years of which were
in the Ministry of Education. He
served as Permanent Secretary
in 4 Ministries including Home
Affairs & Immigration, Education
and Foreign Affairs & External
Trade. For 4 years he served as
Fiji’s High Commissioner to the
United Kingdom and at the same
time served as non-resident
Ambassador to the Republic
of Ireland, Denmark, Germany,
Israel, Egypt and the Holy See. He
also served in Boards including
the LTA Board, FIT Council, FNTC
Council and USP Council. He was
Chairman of the Cakaudrove
Provincial Council from 2008 to
2013.

Mr. Navin Raj was a former
Manager Marketing and Sales at
Fiji Sugar Corporation Limited
(FSC). He previously served as the
Executive Director for Fiji Institute
of Accountants (FIA) and was a
former School Principal at Jai
Narayan College (formerly known
as Indian College). He also sat on
the FHLFML board as a Director.
Mr. Raj holds a Master’s in Business
Administration
(MBA),
Post
Graduate Diploma for Advanced
Analytical Skills (PGDAAS), Post
Graduate Certificate in Education
(PGCE) and Bachelor of Science
(Physics & Chemistry) from the
University of the South Pacific.

Chairman

Director

Director

Currently he is the Managing
Director
of
SUN
Insurance,
Chairman of FHL Unit Trust,
Director of the Fiji Development
Bank, Director of the National
Fire Authority, President of the
Insurance Association of Fiji,
Member of the University of
the South Pacific Finance and
Investment Committee, Member
of the Christian Mission Fellowship
International Executive Board,
Member of the World Harvest
Institute Board and Chairman
of his Village Company Namuka
Nakelo Holding ltd.
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FHL Fund Management
Company Directors

Mr. Nesbitt Hazelman

Mr. Abilash Ram

Mr. Nesbitt Hazelman is the General
Manager of Denarau Corporation
Limited. He holds a Masters in
Industrial
Relations
&
Human
Resource Management from Sydney
University, a Post Graduate Certificate
in Human Resource Management from
Australian Quality College, a BA with
Double Majors in Management and
Sociology with a Diploma in Industrial
Relations and Personnel Management
from the University of the South
Pacific.

Abilash Ram is currently the Acting
Group CEO of FHL group. He was
appointed on the role by the Board
in December 2019. He is the Acting
Chairman
of Merchant
Finance
Pte Limited and Chairman FHL
Stockbrokers
Pte
Limited,
FHL
Retailing and FHL Media Pte Limited.
Mr Abilash Ram is board member
in all FHL subsidiary companies as
well as the associated companies of
Marsh, Pernix, Golden Manufactures
and Ritam Investment. Mr Ram is also
Board Director with APCO Coatings
and Pacific Green Limited.

Chairman

He has more than 15 years’ experience
in Human Resource & Industrial
Relations with 10 years in Executive
Management. He also server of
several other Boards including the
Public Service Commission and His
Excellency the Presidents College of
Honour.
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Director

Mr Ram joined the company in 2012
under the Graduate Trainee program
having had 4 years’ experience in
Audit with Ernst & Young. Mr Ram
has close to 8 years’ experience with
FHL Group working in Finance and
Investment. He has worked across a
number of group companies before
being Appointed Manager Finance at
FHL in 2015 and later appointed CFO
of the group.
Abilash is a Charted Accountant
(Fiji) by profession, CPA, member of
Institute of Internal Auditors and AICD.
He is also a Licenced Investment
Advisor from RBF.
Abilash has received training on
Mergers
and
Acquisition
(M&A
program) from Singapore

FHL Fund Management
Company Directors

Mr. Naushad Ali

Mr.
Mr. Alphonsus
Alphonsus Pio
Pio

Ms. Eseta Nadakuitavuki

Mr. Naushad Ali is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited.
He holds a Master of Business
Administration and a BA with Double
Majors in Accounting, Financial
Management and Economics from
the University of the South Pacific.
He is a Chartered Accountant
(Fiji), Fellow Certified Practising
Accountant (Australia) and member
of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the executive role
in various industries such as retail,
manufacturing, banks, aviation and
construction.

Alphonsus
Alphonsus Pio
Pio is
is aa Chartered
Chartered
Accountant
Accountant and
and holds
holds aa Bachelor
Bachelor
of
of Arts
Arts Degree
Degree in
in Accounting
Accounting and
and
Financial
Financial Management
Management and
and Master
Master
of
of
Commerce
Commerce
in
in
Professional
Professional
Accounting
Accounting from
from the
the University
University
of
of the
the South
South Pacific.
Pacific. He
He has
has more
more
than
than 15
15 years’
years’ experience
experience in
in the
the
private
private sector
sector of
of which
which 11
11 years
years in
in
Executive
Executive Management,
Management, Accountancy
Accountancy
and
and Administration
Administration and
and 66 years
years of
of
experience
experience in
in internal
internal auditing.
auditing. He
He
holds
holds professional
professional membership
membership with
with
the
the Fiji
Fiji Institute
Institute of
of Accountants,
Accountants, CPA
CPA
and
and Institute
Institute of
of Internal
Internal Auditors
Auditors –– Fiji
Fiji
Chapter
Chapterand
and is
is also
also aa Certified
Certified Director
Director
having
having successfully
successfully completed
completed the
the Fiji
Fiji
Directors
Directors course
course with
with the
the Australian
Australian
Institute
Institute of
ofCompany
Company Directors.
Directors.

Eseta Nadakuitavuki is a Senior
Manager Microfinance and Women’s
Markets
for
Westpac
Banking
Corporation. Ms. Nadakuitavuki holds
a double major degree in Management
and
Public
Administration
and
Industrial
Relations
from
the
University of the South Pacific. She
is a Leadership Fellow from the
Leadership Fiji Training.

Director

Director
Director

Director

In 2019, she attended the Aspen
Leadership program hosted by the
Aspen Leadership Institute in Colorado
USA. She has been part of various local
and international panelists advocating
for gender equality.
Recently, she joined the Board
Directors of the Fijian Holdings
Limited, Vice President of the Fiji
Commerce and Employers Federation
Board, Vice Chair of the Governance
Board for the Fiji Women’s Rights
Movement and a Chairperson of the
Women
Entrepreneurs
Business
Council. She has been in leadership
role for 20 years and is responsible for
connecting women with likeminded
women
and
empowering
the
community in Fiji through financial
education.
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How FHUT Manages Risks
Understanding Risks
Like any other investment, there are risks associated with investing in a unit trust. To assess whether a unit trust is
suitable for your investment objectives and your investment timeline, you need to understand these risks and how they
may impact on your investment return.
In investing terms, risk indicates the potential gain or loss associated with investing over time. All investments
involve varying degrees of risk. Generally, higher returns mean greater risk. From an investor’s perspective, for a given
level of return, it is preferable to have less risk than more risk.
Risk Management
The Manager uses a risk management process, enabling it to monitor and measure as frequently as appropriate the
risk of each Fund’s position and their contribution to the overall risk profile of the Fund.
Specific Risks
While there are many factors which may impact the performance of share, property, fixed interest or cash investments,
below is a summary of some of the major risks that exist when investing in unit trusts and how FHUT mitigates those
risks.
1.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk inherent in all types of investments
that results from the erratic nature of the market and of
the global economy in general. Market risk is simply the
possibility the market or economy will decline, causing
individual investments to lose value regardless of the
performance or profitability of the issuing entity. For
example, the current COVID19 crisis, nearly every stock
lost value despite the fact most companies had not done
anything wrong or altered their operations in any way. The
result could not have been predicted or prevented by any
one company.

Under the Trust Deed, the Manager, with the concurrence of
the Trustee, may suspend the redemption of units for such
time as may be necessary to realize sufficient liquid funds
to meet any unusual redemption requests.
4.

This is the risk that the value of the FHUT portfolio will
change due to movements in market factors.
Mitigation Strategy
FHUT’s funds are invested in different markets to minimize
this risk.
2.

3.

This refers to the risk of losing investment funds due to
companies we have provided short term loans defaulting
on their repayments of principal or interest or both.

Performance risk
This risk relates to the performance of the investment
which FHUT has invested in. The return on a particular
investment, such as a share or bond, is affected by the
performance of the issuer of that investment.
Mitigation Strategy
Different investments (cash/shares/bonds/property) tend to
perform differently under the same operating environment.
Therefore, FHUT at all times will try to have different types
of investments in its portfolio. The Manager also continues
to monitor the investment on a regular basis.

Mitigation Strategy
FHL FML conducts thorough due diligence on any investment
it makes, ensures that there are guarantees on the these
investments by principal directors or holding companies,
limits the amount that is given as loans and implement
certain conditions to allow FHUT to collect funds.
5.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk exists when particular investments
are difficult to purchase or sell. A Fund’s investment in
illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Fund
because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at
an advantageous time or price. Investments in foreign
securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market
and/or credit risk tend to have the greatest exposure to
liquidity risk. Illiquid securities may be highly volatile and
difficult to value.
This is the risk that FHUT will not be able to pay unit
holders’ redemption requests.
Mitigation Strategy
FHUT aims to maintain a buffer fund in liquid assets at all
times to meet expected normal redemptions.

8
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Credit risk
Investments may be adversely affected if any of the
institutions with which money is deposited suffers
insolvency or other financial difficulties (default). Credit
risk also arises from the uncertainty about an issuer’s
ultimate repayment of principal and interest for bond or
other debt instrument investments. The entire deposit
or purchase price of the debt instrument is at risk of loss
if there is no recovery after default. The risk of default is
usually greatest with bonds and debt instruments that are
classed as ‘sub-investment’ grade.

Interest rate risk
The values of bonds and other debt instruments usually rise
and fall in response to changes in interest rates. Declining
interest rates generally increase the values of existing debt
instruments, and rising interest rates generally reduce
the value of existing debt instruments. Interest rate risk is
generally greater for investments with long durations or
maturities. Some investments give the issuer the option
to call or redeem an investment before its maturity date.
If an issuer calls or redeems an investment during a time
of declining interest rates, a Fund might have to reinvest
the proceeds in an investment offering a lower yield, and
therefore might not benefit from any increase in value as a
result of declining interest rates.
Mitigation Strategy
Through its investment policy, FHUT aims to balance its
portfolio through short term deposits and term loans.

6.

Data risk
This is the risk of losing information including a unitholder’s

Legal risk refers to the risk of being legally non-compliant
due to changes in Government and Regulator’s policies
and regulations.
Mitigation Strategy
FHL FML has recently appointed a Risk/Compliance Officer
who reports directly to the General Manager and the
Compliance Committee. The officer monitors changes to
regulations for compliance and implementation of best
market practices.

account details even though there is dual system storage
of hard copy filing system and electronic database.
Mitigation Strategy
FHL FML always ensures confidentiality and security of all
unitholders’ information. It is currently developing a new
database system to store more information, conduct daily
backups of electronic system and have also developed a
Disaster Recovery Plan.
7.

Operational risk
Defined as the risk arising from inadequate or failed
internal controls, systems, people of the Trust and its
related entities business functions from the practical
implementation of the Trustee and Manager’s strategy for
growing the Trust.
Mitigation Strategy
FHL FML has developed an operations manual to deal with
all operational processes in line with necessary regulations.
The Manager has developed a five-year strategic plan and
annual KPIs to ensure performance of the Trust. The Manager
also conducts third party due diligence on new investments.
FHL FML ensures the confidentiality and security of all
unit holders’ information. It is currently developing a new
database system to store more information, conducts daily
backups of electronic system and have also developed a
Disaster Recovery Plan.

8.

Regulatory and administration risk
Like any managed fund investment, investments made
through the Trusts are exposed to the risk of future
changes to tax or other legislation that could affect the
operation of the Trusts or the returns available. There will
also always be the risk of a technological or other failure
or event affecting the Trusts or the financial markets in
general. If that occurs, it may affect returns. An underlying
fund manager of a trust may close its investment fund
without notice or on limited notice, and this may result in
investments being held in cash pending the replacement
of the underlying fund manager. Similarly, an underlying
fund manager may close its investment fund to new
applications, resulting in investments also being held in
cash.

Whilst FHUT will do all it can to minimize the risks associated
with the Fund. The appropriate risk- return combination will
depend on your financial objectives. For more information,
it is advisable to seek advice from a licensed FHUT
representative or a licensed investment adviser.
9.

Currency Risk
Currency risk arises when foreign currencies fall in value
relative to the Fiji dollar. This is not relevant to FHUT as
it does not invest offshore at the current time although it
has an approved allocation.
Mitigation Strategy
If FHUT does invest offshore, it will invest in economies that
are well developed and have stringent monetary policy that
may not affect the value of its currency.

10.

Politically Exposed Person(s)
PEP is someone who, through their prominent position or
influence is more susceptible to be involved in bribery or
corruption.
Mitigation Strategy
FHL FML has developed a Risk Management policy to
identify PEPs.
Whilst FHUT will do all it can to try to minimize the risks
associated with the Fund. The appropriate risk-return
combination will depend on your financial objectives. For
more information, it is advisable to seek advice from a
licensed FHUT representative or a licensed investment
adviser.

DGM Sales and Marketing on his presentation to the USP Staff Union.
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Fund Manager’s Report
Dear Unitholders,

We are pleased to deliver our report on Fijian Holdings Unit
Trust (FHUT) for the year ended 30th June 2021. As Directors
of FHL Fund Management Limited (the Fund Manager for
FHUT) we present the Financial Statement for the year
ended 30th June 2021 for Fijian Holdings Unit Trust and the
Independent Audit Report to you our valued unitholders.
The 2021 financial year saw a few key developments for
the Fund as we open our new FHUT branch in Nasekula Rd,
Labasa. Apart, from our headquarters in Suva we now have
two branches, one in Lautoka and the newly furnished office
in Labasa. These developments will further position the
FHUT product to remain a relatively competitive investment
product for an average investor due to convenience and
accessibility both in our physical presence and lowest entry
price in the market for any income and growth fund or other
comparable financial product.
Fijian Holdings Unit Trust recorded a negative total return
of 8.67% which consist of a dividend return 1.33% and a
negative growth return of 10.00%. The negative capital
growth for the year was caused by a lower value recorded for
income received from our investments in correlation to the
increasing total units on offer. Throughout FY21 the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic was inevitable as it affected the
stock market and the interest rate on term deposits.
By the end of FY2021, the total units on issue had surpassed
144 million mark. Despite the challenging operating
environment, the Fund paid out a total of $1.91million during
the year, bringing the total dividend paid out since inception
to over $45 million. The FHUT investment portfolio slightly
grew by 2.69% to $130.02m concurrently a 14.3% growth in
total number of unitholders was also recorded at the end of
FY2021. Considering the lockdown and all the restrictions
imposed by the pandemic, the increase in unit holders is
a reflection of success we’ve had on online marketing &
service.

FHUT Staff with MaiTV Fiji Team.
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As we proceed to the next financial year, we expect so many
challenges in view of the current investment environment
and the risk of uncertainties, however; we remain optimistic
and wish to reassure our unitholders that we will do our best
to return a competitive yield on their investment.
We acknowledge the contribution of our external service
providers and their continued assistance in the promotion
and sale of our product within Fiji and abroad this year. The
Fund Manager will continue to investment in I.T to improve
existing online services and create efficiency for the Fund.
We would like to thank the Board for both FHL Fund
Management Limited and FHL Trustees Limited for their
guidance, encouragement and support during the year. It
has been a very difficult year for all businesses in Fiji but
through expert advice from our Directors, the Fund and the
Fund Manager was able maneuver through the impacts of
COVID-19. Last but not the least, we would like to record our
sincere gratitude to you our unitholders for your support and
confidence in the Fund.

FHL Fund Management Limited Director

FHL Trustees Limited Director

General Manager’s Report
We are committed to ensure that our product is made available
to rural areas and accessible throughout Fiji as well as
overseas markets. In spite of the challenges, our team have
been working hard maintaining the sales objectives. Owing to
their resilient efforts, the sales achieved was made possible
through awareness and an increase in our online presence. The
online marketing combined with the online service delivery,
promoted by COVID 19 restriction on the contrary proved to
be quite successful for the Fund. This naturally created a shift
from the traditional mode of service delivery to a digital mode
of service delivery which is proving to be safer and efficient for
our unitholders.
In expanding our reach, FHUT opened a new branch in Labasa
Town in April 2021 that bring services closure to our unitholder
in Vanua Levu.
Our portfolio grew by 27% reaching over $130 million as at
30th June 2021. This has been attributed by new investments.
The growth return was negative 10% as the exit price declined
during the year.
The Fund experience a decline in returns from its investment.
The first 9 months saw low rates offered on term deposits
and decline in dividend income from listed and unlisted
investments.
The objective of the Fund is to generate income with potential
for capital growth through investment objectives in various
sectors of the market and increasing returns from these
investment. It has been a challenging year for investment
performance against the operating environment. Nonetheless,
acquiring good investment will be the main priority for the
Fund Manager.

Dear Valued Unitholders,
I am pleased to present our 2021 Annual Report after what
a year full of challenges for our company and of course, the
broader community.
When I wrote to you in last year’s Annual Report I highlighted
a promising outlook for the Fund. Soon after, the onset of the
2nd wave of COVID-19 pandemic presented an unprecedented
challenge. I am pleased at how our Board, management team
and staff have navigated the complexities of COVID-19 and
delivered a strong financial result that positions the Fund for
strong growth in the years ahead.
The financial year 2021 saw the Fund recorded a profit of $1.9
million, 20% lower than the 2020 financial year result, is an
excellent outcome in the face of significant COVID-19 related
headwinds experienced during the year.

The new financial year will see the implementation of new
initiatives to improve service delivery to our unitholders and
improve the accessibility of the Fund to investors. These new
initiatives will drive FHUT to be an investment product of
choice to all Fijians.
The anticipation for next financial year to be another challenging
year however, as per the expectation of our unitholders we
will continue to work towards providing our unitholders a
competitive return.
My sincere appreciation goes to the Board of Director for FHL
Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees Limited for their
guidance, positive contribution and commitment towards the
Fund. On the same token, I would like to thank the Management
team and staff for their commitment and efforts and look
forward to their continuous support in the next financial year.
Most importantly, I would like to thank our unitholders for their
continued confidence and trust to the Fund which has been
the driving force in our success.
Thank you

This has allowed the Fund to declare a 0.0133 cent per unit
as dividend amounting to $1.91 million. The business retains
a balance sheet with substantial cash holdings, important to
finance our growth ambitions.
The Fund achieved 31% growth in the Units compared to
previous year as a result of a vigorous awareness drive by our
marketing team through our various media partnership and
services providers. As at June end, total active unitholders
stood at 22,000.

Amrish Lal
Acting General Manager

Furthermore, out of the six target markets, the Employee
Deduction Scheme (EDS) has been the biggest contributor to
the growth of the active unitholders.
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FHUT Investment Portfolio

FHUT Management and Staffs.

FINANCE
Investments comprises of Merchant Finance Limited,
BSP Convertible Notes, Kontiki Finance Limited and a new
investment with FijiCare Insurance Limited. The current
content of the finance sector is 10.62% of the FHUT portfolio.
Merchant Finance Pte. Limited (MFL)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 6.89%
Merchant Finance Pte. Limited (Merchant Finance) formerly
known as Merchant Bank of Fiji Limited was established
in 1986, as a joint initiative between Australian Guarantee
Corporation (AGC), International Finance Corporation (IFC)
and the Fiji Development Bank, primarily to offer an array
of financing facilities. In April of 1992, the company was
licensed as a credit institution expanding their capabilities
as a financial institution to issue investment products,
primarily term deposits.
In August 1997, MFL became a 100% Fijian owned corporation
after AGC and IFC divested their shareholdings. The current
shareholding of the company are held in part by Fijian
Holdings Limited (80%) and FHL Trustees Limited (20%),
as trustee to Fijian Holdings Unit Trust. Whilst Merchant
Finance is constrained by its competitiveness on a price
basis, the challenge is to maintain competitiveness through
customer service provision and enhancement of existing
and new business relationships. Merchant Finance Limited
is now operating as Merchant Finance Pte. Limited.
BSP Convertible Notes Limited (BCN)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 2.74%
BSP Convertible Notes Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Bank of South Pacific (BSP), incorporated in Fiji as a

12
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special purpose vehicle to fund the BSP branch in Fiji. BCN
has mandatorily converted the Notes into Fiji Class Shares.
The profit after tax for 2020 was $2.61 million compared
to $2.95 million for the same period last year. The slight
reduction in profit was a decrease on the company’s
revenues of support fees. The company continues to
maintain a healthy cash flow.
Kontiki Finance Limited (KFL)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.59%
Kontiki Finance Limited is a Fijian majority owned company
established in 2014 with the aim of providing Fijians
competitive and accessible financing for both consumers
and small to medium-sized businesses. KFL is a full-service
provider of accessible finance solutions targeted mainly at
consumers and small to medium enterprises (SMEs).
Licensed by the Reserve Bank of Fiji as a credit institution
under the Banking Act 1995, the company is able to solicit
term deposits from members of the public and utilize the
funds to offer loans to clients. The company has a wholly
owned subsidiary company, Platinum Insurance Limited,
which provides loan protection insurance to KFL’s loan
clients and it is supervised by the Reserve Bank of Vanuatu.
KFL recorded a consolidated net profit after tax of $4.3m,
down from $7.3m in the prior year, largely due to reduced
sales and increased impairment provisions due to the COVID
economic restrictions. KFL achieved a solid 15% return
on equity for the year, demonstrating the resilience of the
business even during these difficult economic conditions.
This result has enabled us to return total dividends (interim
and final dividends) to our shareholders of 4.5 cents per
share for the year.

FHUT Investment Portfolio (Cont’d)
FijiCare Insurance Limited (FIL)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.40%
FijiCare Insurance Limited (FIL) is a general insurance
company specialising in medical, term life, mortgage
protection, personal accident, worker’s compensation,
public liability, funeral, motor vehicle insurance and micro
insurance. FIL is currently diversifying in other products
and services to meet the needs of the people in the Pacific
Islands. In 2000, FijiCare was publicly listed on the South
Pacific Stock Exchange (“SPSE”) as the first listed general
insurer. In 2014, FijiCare diversified into comprehensive
motor vehicle insurance. In 2014, VanCare Insurance Limited
was established in Vanuatu as a wholly-owned subsidiary
of FijiCare. VanCare provides Compulsory Third Party and
Comprehensive Motor Vehicle insurance products and
has recently launched medical insurance products. FIL is
currently diversifying in other products and services to meet
the needs of the people in the Pacific Islands.
FIL has continuously recorded profits over the years with its
latest results showing a net profit after tax of 1.60 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, a decrease from
the prior year of $4.40 million. The Company continues to
maintain a healthy cash flow year on year despite the impact
of COVID-19.
RETAIL
The retail sector is one of the fastest growing sectors in Fiji
and currently makes up 18.65% of the FHUT portfolio. FHUT
has investments in three of the largest retailers in the Fiji
market namely RB Patel Group Limited, Vision Investments
Limited and Toyota Tsusho (South Sea) Limited.
Toyota Tsusho (South Sea) Limited (TTS)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.24%
Toyota Tsusho (South Sea) Limited, trading as Asco Motors,
operates through dealerships which are strategically
located throughout Fiji, Tonga, Samoa and American Samoa.
The company markets Toyota, Yamaha, Massey Ferguson,
Bridgestone, Kobe, and other global products as well as
operates the Avis franchise. In each region that Asco Motors
operates, it is the market leader in many of the market
segments.
TTS profit after tax for 2021 was $5.87 million compared to
$12.19 million for the same period last year. The reduction
in profit was a direct result of the impact of COVID-19 on
the company’s revenues of product sales. The company
continues to maintain a healthy cash flow.
RB Patel Group Limited (RBG)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 11.29%
RB Patel Group Ltd (RBG) is primarily a supermarket operator.
The company has 10 supermarkets in various cities and town
in Fiji. In addition to supermarket operations RBG also has a
substantial property portfolio that it manages.
RBG has continuously recorded profits over the years with
its latest results showing a net profit after tax of $8.57
million for the year, a slight decrease from the prior year of
$9.68 million. The decline in the activity in the west division
together with the need to provide relief to the tenants results
in the decrease in profits. The groups profit from operations
increased by 3.6% to $12.30 from $11.88 million last year.

The COVID-19 pandemic has brought many challenges to
business in general and the retail industry in particular.
The economic outlook continues to be uncertain however
the recent budget initiatives, supporting businesses, and
opening of local containments zones and international
borders will provide optimism and signs of improvements.
Vision Investment Limited (VIL)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 7.12%
Vision Investments Limited is a diversified and successful
business enterprise with a solid track record of growth and
sustained earnings and a long history of trading in Fiji. This
year, a division of the Company, Courts commemorated
100 years of operations in Fiji. The Company comprises of
a mix of established and mature businesses with solid track
record of profitability and other relatively new businesses in
early stages of growth and profitability. Currently VIL Group
consists of Courts, Sports World, Best Buys for Business,
Carpets International, Vision Motors, Mahogany Industries
(Fiji), Vision Finance and Home & More in PNG.
The groups profit after tax for 2021 was $6.90 million
compared to $16.01 million for the same period last year.
The reduction in profit was a direct result of the impact of
COVID-19 on the company’s revenues of product sales and
retail operations.
TOURISM
Tourism makes up 0.07% of FHUT’s portfolio consisting of
equity investments with Port Denarau Marina Limited.
Port Denarau Marina Limited (PDM)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.07%
Established in 1999, the company owns and operates a
world-class multi-use marina facility on Denarau Island in
Nadi. It strives to be the leading marina facility in the Pacific,
providing exceptional customer service with safe and healthy
facilities, ensuring the enhancement of Fiji’s nautical tourism
industry while protecting her distinct marine environment
for future generation. Port Denarau Marina was listed on SPX
14th of August 2019.
The Company recorded a net profit after tax of $6.15 million
for 2020 which had an increase from previous year’s $3.99
million. The increase in the profit was a result of Blue Lane
initiative and stringent cost management.
MANUFACTURING
Manufacturing makes up 12.49% of FHUT’s portfolio
consisting of equity investments with Punjas Flour Limited,
Golden Manufacturers Limited, Atlantic & Pacific Packaging
Company Limited, Pacific Green Industries (Fiji) Limited,
Rice Company of Fiji, Pleass Global Limited and FMF Foods
Limited.
Punjas Flour Limited
FHUT’s Portfolio: 1.53%
Punjas began operation in 1935. Today it is one of the
largest privately owned group of companies in the South
Pacific, employing more than 800 people. Headquartered in
Lautoka, Fiji, the Punjas Group of Companies manufactures,
markets and distributes a comprehensive range of food and
beverage products and other consumer goods throughout
the South Pacific, Australia and New Zealand. Punjas
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FHUT Investment Portfolio (Cont’d)
also has its own design, printing, plastic packaging and
corrugated box manufacturing operations. The company
invests heavily in its people, in research and development,
and in quality control and all Punjas products and services
meet the highest international manufacturing and food
safety standards. Its production facilities use the latest
machinery and computer-controlled technology sourced
from the world’s leading equipment manufacturers.
Golden Manufacturers Limited
FHUT’s Portfolio: 3.61%
Being the leading manufacturer of corrugated packaging
in the South Pacific, Golden Manufacturers Limited has
packaging solutions for beverage, canned fish and meat,
packed food, garment, horticulture, and industrial produce
markets in the South Pacific, New Zealand, Australia, the
Asian rim, and internationally. It offers pre-printed regular
slotted cartons, wax cartons, die-cut cartons, and heavy
duty packaging products. The company was founded in
1980 and is based in Nasinu, Fiji. GML also serves the entire
South Pacific region, New Zealand, Australia as well as the
Asian region. The company delivers packaging globally
with competitive efficiency that matches and goes beyond
market standards all over the world. The commitment
of the company means that they deliver the goods to the
highest quality standards and specification. A wide range of
international and local clients have been relying on Golden
Manufacturers for over 30 years. Whether it is a small local
distributor or a multi-faceted corporate, all their clients feel
confident with entrusting their packaging operations with
Golden Manufacturers Limited.
Atlantic & Pacific Packaging Company Ltd (APP)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.91%
Atlantic & Pacific Packaging Company Limited or Atpack as it
is commonly known is a subsidiary of FMF Foods Limited. It
was established in 1998 and manufactures a wide range of
packaging materials including corrugated cartons, assorted
containers and bags. APP recorded a profit after tax for the
year of $2.15 million which has increased from last previous
year’s profit after tax of $2.04 million. During the year, the
Company declared an interim dividend of 5.50 cents per
share.
Pacific Green Industries (Fiji) Limited (PGI)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.21%
Engages in the manufacture and sale of furniture and
architectural products made from coconut palm wood.
Despite the challenging environment and impacts of
COVID-19, the profit after tax for 2020 was $291,183 million
compared to $445,753 for the same period last year. The
company also maintained a healthy cash flows and had no
borrowings.
The Rice Company of Fiji Limited (RCF)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.34%
Rice Company of Fiji, a subsidiary of FMF Foods Limited
is a dealer in rice and allied products. The company,
which began operation in 1996, has an advanced and well
organized processing line using fully automated machinery
where imported rice is milled, cleaned, repacked, and sold.
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RCF recorded a profit after tax for the year of $2.14 million in
comparison to 2020 of $2.16 million. The Company recorded
11% increase in sales in 2021.
Pleass Global Limited (PBP)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 1.18%
Pleass Global Limited is a diverse and growing corporation
principally engaged in production and marketing of bottled
water plus importation and wholesale of packaging materials
concurrently operating adventure eco-tourism services and
is in establishment phase of organic farming and property
development.
The Company recorded a net profit after tax of $1.06
million for 2020 which had an increase from previous year’s
$0.67 million. The increase in the profit was a result of
diversification in to innovative product range such as sale
of facemasks and sanitizing wipe to corporations for their
frontline workers together with stringent cost management.
FMF Foods Limited (FMF)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 4.71%
FMF
Foods Limited deals in activities of flour milling,
managing of SNAX factory production including biscuits,
noodles and potato chips with two of its subsidiaries listed
in South Pacific Stock Exchange. The company has been
listed on SPSE platform since 1979.
FMF Foods Limited and subsidiaries recorded a profit after
tax for the year of $9.26 million which has decreased from
previous year’s net profit of $12.39 million. Earnings per
share decreased from 7.36 cents to 5.20 cents compared to
its corresponding year.
TRANSPORTATION
Transportation makes up 1.46% of the FHUT
portfolio
consisting of equity investments with VB Holdings Limited.
VB Holdings Limited (VBH)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 1.46%
VB holdings Limited was formed in 1945 and having
completed 70 years of trading, sets aside a portion of
its profit for educational and social cause. The company
was formed as a public company 71 years ago, but was
restructured and listed on the SPSE in 2001.
Despite the challenging environment and impacts of
COVID-19, the company’s profit after tax for 2020 was $1.40
million compared to prior year of $1.62 million. The decrease
of revenue was mainly due to assistance to customers in the
reduction of rent for commercial properties.
ENERGY
Energy - solar makes 0.31% of the FHUT portfolio consisting
of equity investments with Pernix (Fiji) Limited.

FHUT Investment Portfolio (Cont’d)
Pernix (Fiji) Limited
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.31%

Communications (Fiji) Limited (CFL)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 1.56%

Pernix (Fiji) Limited (PFL) is a subsidiary of Pernix Group
Pernix (Fiji) Limited (PFL) is a subsidiary of Pernix Group
Inc. It was established in 2000 to provide diesel fired power
generation plants and later operation and maintenance
services in Fiji. Formerly known as Telesource Fiji Limited.
PFL is currently under contract with Energy Fiji Limited (EFL
– formerly Fiji Electricity Authority (FEA)) to operate and
maintain two separate power generation plants in Kinoya and
Vuda, to sell electrical energy produced on a wholesale level.
The two largest diesel-based power plants in Fiji are located
in Kinoya and Vuda. Most recently, PFL was instrumental in
providing local man power support to its parent company for
work on the New U.S Embassy compound.

Communications Fiji Ltd (CFL), the largest radio broadcasting
company in the South Pacific. CFM operates five radio
stations in Fiji and, under subsidiary PNG FM, a further three
in Papua New Guinea.

In November 2015, Pernix (Fiji) Limited completed the
construction of the 36 megawatt Kinoya expansion plant in
Suva and also announced the award of a 13-year EFL (FEA)
operations and maintenance (O&M) contract. Furthermore,
the Pernix subsidiary was awarded a 5-year extension, on
its 20-year FEA O&M contract for the existing Kinoya and
Vuda power stations. The new agreement and the existing
contract extension is expected to generate approximately
$42 million dollars in gross revenue through 2028.
INFORMATION, COMMUNICATION, MEDIA & TECHNOLOGY
Though a dynamic sector with lots of growth potential, the
communication and information sector makes up only 9.22%
of the FHUT Portfolio. This consists of Amalgamated Telecom
Holdings Limited, Fiji TV, Communications Fiji Limited and
Life Cinema Limited.
Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Ltd (ATH)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 4.56%
ATH is the holding company for most highly reputable
telecommunication companies in the South Pacific such
as Vodafone or Telecom Fiji, with more than 15 operating
companies in 10 Pacific markets. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2021, the operating revenue of the ATH
Group amounted to $580 million, representing a decrease of
14% compared to the same period last year. It is also to be
highlighted that the Group’s net profit before tax amounted
to $54.7 million, representing a decline of 22% over the same
period last year.
Fiji Television Limited (FTV)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 3.10%
Fiji
TV is a production company mainly focused on TV
production, advertising, online, radio and outside broadcast.
The principal activities of the Group during the financial
year was the operation of commercial free to air and the
selling and servicing of radio, television and communication
products.
The net loss for 2021 was $2.35 million compared to loss
of $2.73 million for the same period last year. The loss is a
direct result of the impact of COVID-19 on the company’s
revenues. The pandemic has led to most businesses cutting
back on advertising and promotions on television. Major
local and international sports and other events have also
been cancelled or postponed due to the rapid spread of the
virus in most countries and this has further impacted the
company’s revenue streams.

CFL’s group profit after tax for the financial year ended 31st
December 2020 was $0.82 million which had a decrease
from previous year’s 2.23 million.
EDUCATION
FHUT has 0.62% of its portfolio invested in Education Sector.
FREE BIRD INSTITUTE LIMITED (FIJI)
FHUT’s Portfolio: 0.62%
Free Bird Institute Limited runs an Educational Institute
catering to the vast majority of international students
wishing to study English in Fiji. It has over the years
expanded its business operations to include the provision
of in-house insurance schemes to its students, foreign
exchange services as well an employment agency.
FBL has continuously recorded profits over the years with its
latest results showing a net profit after tax of $0.71 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, a slight increase from
the prior year of $0.64 million. The company continues to
maintain a healthy cash flow year on year with its cash and
cost reduction.
OVERSEAS INVESTMENTS
The Fund has also invested in the Australian Stock Exchange
listed stocks; Market – ASX, ANZ Banking Corp, Telstra Corp,
Woolworth Corp, Wesfarmers Ltd, and BHP Billiton Ltd.
FHUT has 0.53% of its portfolio invested in overseas listed
stocks.
MANAGED FUNDS
FHUT has 0.98% of its portfolio invested in other local
managed funds.
BONDS
FHUT investments in bonds make up 8.04% of its portfolio
consisting of Fiji Development Loan, Fiji Development
Bonds, Fiji Infrastructure bonds, Housing Authority bonds,
and Viti Bonds.
CASH & FIXED INTEREST SECURITIES
This sector makes up 37.01% of the FHUT portfolio consisting
mainly of on-call, term deposits and secured short-term
loans with various financial institutions and well established
reputable companies to allow the Fund to access funds
readily for investment opportunities that may arise.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
Our business is about connecting and making connections, which are critical to inclusivity.

Beyond our products and services, we look for ways to support stakeholders, particularly those in underserved communities.
In 2021, with the spread of COVID-19, it was not business as usual. Throughout the year, FHL FML participated in a number of
events that add to the enhancement of the community.
Financial Inclusion

At FHL FML, we believe that everyone should have access to the financial system and literacy. We partner with local
comminutes to provide financial system and financial literacy on topics like access to capital, saving, investments and cash
flow management. Additionally, we collaborate with community villagers and headmans in localities across the country.

FHUT Staff travlling to Beqa on Utoniyalo.

Presentation at Naceva in Beqa.

FHUT Staff returning from Beqa after one
week of Financial Literacy Program.

Stationary Assistance

The destructive effect of TC Yasa in the wider northern division in December 2020 had impacted the parents in meeting
the school requirement to send their children to school. FHLFML with its Board of Directors had decided to assist three
rural schools in North which was Lekutu District School, Galoa Island School and Naivaka Primary School with assistance of
stationery to assist parents in sending their children to school.

Acting General Manager and FHL FML
Chairman Distributed the School packs to
Northen School.

FHL FML Chairman distributing School
packs.

Outreach Program

Professional Training

FHUT Staff joined Sai Prema Foundation.

FHL FML Management Team and Service Providers provided
Staff Training.

The FHL FML team joined Sai Prema Foundation Fiji in
conducting Health on Wheels Medical Outreach at Wailotua
District School (Tailevu) in March 2021. This Medical Camp
was conducted by Sai Prema Foundation Fiji in partnership
with Ministry of Health. Our employees joined the medical
team in assisting in health services which was free of charge
to the communities.
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FHUT Staff’s packing books for distribution.
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We continue to assist our employees to further their
professional training in the different field they work in.
Staffs were also provided with training to up skill in areas
of work.
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Director’s Report
In accordance with resolution of the directors of the FHL Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees Limited,
the directors herewith submit the statement of financial position of the Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (“the Trust”)
as at 30 June 2021, the related statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and report as follows:
Trustee and Manager
Manager
The Manager of the Trust at the date of this report is FHL Fund Management Limited. The directors of the
management company at the date of this report are:
Mr. Nesbitt Hazelman (Chairperson)
Ms. Eseta Nadakuitavuki
Mr. Alphonsus Pio Nataniela			
Mr. Naushad Ali
Mr. Abilash Ram
Trustee
The Trustee of the Trust at the date of this report is FHL Trustee Limited. The directors of the Trustee company at
the date of this report are:
Mr. Inia Naiyaga (Chairperson)			
Mr. Emitai Boladuaduas				
Mr. Navin Raj
Date of Formation
The Trust was established on 27 April 2001 and has a life of 60 years from its inception.
Principal Activity
The Trust is an investment vehicle that allows investors’ monies to be pooled with other unit holders’ monies
that in return are issued with units and become unit holders in the Trust. The pooled funds are then invested
by the Manager across a range of investments in accordance with the investment guidelines contained in the
Investment Policy statement.
Results
The results for the year are as follows:
Profit for the year

$

Gain / (loss) on disposal of listed equities
Income available for distribution

$

2021

2020

1,903,328

2,390,766

(998)

3,099,120

1,902,330

5,489,886

Dividends
The Trust declared and paid a final dividend for 2020 of $2,026,175 (2019: $2,183,585) and an interim dividend for
2021 of $1,117,928 during the year (2020: $2,597,153).
Assets
Prior to the completion of the financial statements of the Trust, the directors of the Trustee and the Manager took
reasonable steps to ascertain whether any assets were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business
compared to their values as shown in the accounting records of the Trust. Where necessary these assets have
been written down or adequate provision has been made to bring the values of such assets to an amount that
they might be expected to realise.
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Director’s Report (Cont’d)
Assets (Cont’d)
As at the date of this report, the directors of the Trustee and the Manager are not aware of any circumstances,
which would render the values attributed to assets in the Trust’s financial statements misleading.
Unusual Transactions
In the opinion of the directors of the Trustee and the Manager, the results of the operations of the Trust during the
financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material unusual nature, nor
has there arisen between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of
a material unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Trustee and Manager, to affect substantially
the results of the operations of the Trust in the current financial year, other than the matter discussed under
Significant Events during the Year below.
Fair Value Reserves
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets held at fair value
through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognised, disposed or impaired.
Basis of Accounting – Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The directors of the Trustee and the Manager believe that the Trust has plans and strategies to generate
adequate income available for distribution and cash flows from its operations, the Trust will be able to meet its
obligations as and when they fall due and the Trust will be able to continue in operation for at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements. Therefore, the directors believe that the classification
and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as stated in these financial statements are appropriate. The Trust
and the Manager have set out strategies and plans for next 12 months to meet the needs of the unit holders
by decreasing the management fees payment to the manager and retaining the profit from the difference to be
distributed as dividend.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might become necessary should the
Trust be unable to continue as a going concern.
Related Party Transactions
In the opinion of the directors of the Trustee and the Manager all related party transactions have been adequately
recorded in the books of the Trust and reflected in the financial statements.
Significant Events during the Year
The second wave of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak in Fiji during the last quarter of the financial year
presents a significant challenge for Fiji. The impact of COVID-19 outbreak on public life and the economy in
Fiji and globally is impacting the overall operations of the Trust including its liquidity and cash flows for 2022
financial year.
The Trust has implemented strategies to control and keep tab of all the withdrawals and most importantly to
elevate sales to another level. The Trust has taken necessary steps to ensure that there is minimal business
disruptions by putting in place business strategies with the intention to ensure sustainability of the Trust and
importantly its commitment to the unit holders remain paramount.
The major impact on sales and redemption was shown when the second wave of COVID 19 affected Fiji during the
last quarter of financial year. The Trust and the Manager have set out strategies and plans for next 12 months to
meet the needs of the unit holders by decreasing the management fees payment to the manager and retaining
the profit from the difference to be distributed as dividend.
Furthermore, the Trust has planned to invest in a new product which is expected to launch in the coming financial
year in order to maintain the customer confidence and relationship with the Trust. Moreover, the Trust will
continue to monitor and assess its business operations progressively and will undertake further actions where
appropriate.
The management and directors believe that with the plans and strategies in place, the Trust can minimize the
future impact of COVID-19 outbreak on the overall operations and performance of the Trust.
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Director’s Report (Cont’d)
Events Subsequent to Balance Date
In July 2021, the directors declared the final dividend of $793,022 for the year ended 30 June 2021.
Apart from this and the continuing impact of COVID -19 into 2022 financial year, there has been no transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations
of the Trust, the results of those operations or state of affairs of the Trust in subsequent financial year.
Other Circumstances
As at the date of this report:
(i)

no charge on the assets of the Trust has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the
liabilities of any other person;

(ii)

no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the Trust could become
liable; and

(iii)

no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the Trust has become or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Trustee and the Manager, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Trust to meet its
obligations as and when they fall due.

As at the date of this report, the directors of the Trustee and the Manager are not aware of any circumstances
that have arisen, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the Trust’s financial statements, which would make
adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Trust misleading or inappropriate.
Trustee’s and Manager’s Benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors of the Trustee or Manager has received or become
entitled to receive a benefit (other than those included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due
and receivable by the directors of the Trustee and Manager shown in the financial statements or received as the
fixed salary of a full-time employee of a related party) by reason of a contract made by the Trust or by a related
party with the directors of the Trustee or Manager or with a firm of which they are a member, or with a company
in which they have a substantial financial interest.
Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 together with the accompanying notes set out on
pages 30 to 45 are approved as being in accordance with the books and records of the Fijian Holdings Unit Trust.
Signed in accordance with resolutions of the directors of the FHL Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees
Limited.

Dated this day 24th of September 2021.

____________________________
Director
FHL Fund Management Limited
Manager of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust
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___________________________
Director
FHL Trustees Limited
Trustee of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust

Declaration by the Directors
The declaration by directors is required by the Companies Act, 2015.
The directors of FHL Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees Limited have made a resolution that declares:
a)

In the opinion of the directors, the financial statements of the Trust for the financial year ended 30 June
2021:

i.

comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards and give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Trust as at 30 June 2021 and of the performance and cash flows of the Trust for the year
ended 30 June 2021; and

ii.

have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2015.

b)

The directors have received independence declaration by auditors as required by Section 395 of the
Companies Act, 2015; and

c)

At the date of this declaration, in the opinion of the directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that
the Trust will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with resolutions of the directors of FHL Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees
Limited.

Dated this 24th day of September 2021.

____________________________
Director
FHL Fund Management Limited
Manager of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust

___________________________
Director
FHL Trustees Limited
Trustee of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust
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Tel: +679 331 4300
Fax: +679 330 1841
Email: info@bdo.com.fj
Offices in Suva and Lautoka

BDO
Chartered Accountants
Level 10, FNPF Place
343 Victoria Parade
GPO Box 855
Suva, Fiji

FIJIAN HOLDINGS UNIT TRUST
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
As auditor for the audit of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust for the financial year ended 30 June 2021, I declare to the
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements in relation to the audit; and
(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Wathsala Suraweera
Partner
Suva, Fiji

BDO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
24 September 2021

BDO, Chartered Accountants, a Fiji Partnership, is a member firm of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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BDO
Chartered Accountants
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343 Victoria Parade
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Suva, Fiji

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (“the Trust”), which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Trust as at 30 June 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting standards (IFRS).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Fiji and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other information
The management and directors of the Trustee Company and Management Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises of the information included in the directors’ report but does not
include the financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Trustee Company and Management Company (“directors”) and management are responsible
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the Companies
Act, 2015, and the provisions of the Trust Deed, and for such internal control as the directors and management
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

BDO, Chartered Accountants, a Fiji Partnership, is a member firm of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (Cont’d)
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
In preparing the financial statements, the management and directors are responsible for assessing the Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the management and directors either intend to liquidate the Trust or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The management and those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud and error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Trust’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s and directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures, are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the management and those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO, Chartered Accountants, a Fiji Partnership, is a member firm of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (Cont’d)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
We also provide the management and those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2015 in all material respects, and;
a)

we have been given all information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of the audit; and

b)

the Trust has kept financial records sufficient to enable the financial statements to be prepared and audited.

In our opinion, the financial statements give the information required by the provisions of the Trust Deed in the
manner so required.

BDO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Wathsala Suraweera
Partner
Suva, Fiji
24 September 2021

BDO, Chartered Accountants, a Fiji Partnership, is a member firm of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms
.
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Notes

2021

2020

2,480,598
1,433,880
106,586
17,598

2,811,333
1,491,881
277,675

4,038,662

4,580,889

8,511
2,021,713
38,060
50,000
17,050

6,319
2,060,432
28,537
50,000
5,461
39,374

2,135,334

2,190,123

1,903,328

2,390,766

(266,170)

4,844,904

Fair value gain on government bonds

443,192

136,038

Total other comprehensive income

177,022

4,980,942

2,080,350

7,371,708

Revenue
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method
Dividend income
Net equalization
Other income
Expenses
Bank charges
Management fees
Professional fees
Trustee’s fees
Net equalization
Other expenses

5 (a)
5 (b)

$

10

5 (c)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value gain/(loss) on listed and unlisted equities
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss:

Total comprehensive income for the year

$

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Notes
Unit holders’ equity
At 1 July
12,174,607 units created during the year (2020:
15,545,591 units)
7,743,031 units redeemed during the year (2020:
16,667,569 units)
At 30 June

$

12

9

Fair value reserves
At 1 July
Fair value gain on financial assets
Transfer of cumulative fair value loss / (gain) upon sale
of listed equities measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income to net income available for
distribution
At 30 June
Total unit holders’ equity

2020

94,677,065

95,728,060

11,366,616

14,646,646

(7,084,247) (15,697,641)

Net income available for distribution
At 1 July
Profit for the year
Transfer of cumulative fair value gain /(loss) upon sale
of listed equities measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income from fair value reserves
Dividend declared and paid during the year
At 30 June

2021

6
$

98,959,434

94,677,065

2,123,240
1,903,328

1,396,092
2,390,766

(998)
(3,144,104)

3,099,120
(4,762,738)

881,466

2,123,240

30,639,024
176,024

28,757,202
4,980,942

998

(3,099,120)

30,816,046

30,639,024

130,656,946

127,439,329

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2021
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Liabilities
Payables

Notes
14
7

$

8

11

Net assets
Unit holders’ equity
Unit holders’ equity repayable on
demand:144,191,798 units fully paid
(2020: 139,760,222 units)
Net income available for distribution
Fair value reserves
Total unit holders’ equity

12
9
6
$

2021

2020

4,743,725
46,936,305

2,651,999
46,296,930

79,342,367

78,938,473

131,022,397

127,887,402

365,451

448,073

365,451

448,073

130,656,946

127,439,329

98,959,434
881,466
30,816,046

94,677,065
2,123,240
30,639,024

130,656,946

127,439,329

Signed in accordance with resolutions of the directors of FHL Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees
Limited.

____________________________
Director						
FHL Fund Management Limited
Manager of the Fijian Holdings Unit Trust

___________________________
Director
FHL Trustees Limited
Trustee of the Fijian Holdings Unit Trust

				

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Notes

2021

2020

2,756,330
1,644,498
(2,117,092)
(222,149)
(4,955,049)

3,079,314
2,148,126
(1,926,018)
(5,906,873)
8,913,957

3,815,895

(173,383)

922,433

6,135,123

11,397,644
(7,084,247)
(3,144,104)

14,848,392
(15,697,641)
(4,762,738)

Net cash flows provided by /(used in) financing
activities

1,169,293

(5,611,987)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

2,091,726

523,136

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year

2,651,999

2,128,863

4,743,725

2,651,999

Cash flows from operating activities

$

Cash received in the course of operations
Interest
Dividend
Cash payments in the course of operations
Payment for purchase of shares and bonds, net
Withdrawal of /(payment for) term deposits, net
Proceeds from repayment of loans / (loan provided),
net
Net cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of units
Payments for repurchase of units
Distribution paid to unit holders

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

14

$

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021
NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Fijian Holding Unit Trust (“the Trust”) is a unit trust incorporated and domiciled in Fiji. The address of its registered
office and principal place of business are disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements.
Principal activity
The unit trust is an investment vehicle that allows investors’ monies to be pooled with other unit holders’ monies
that in return are issued with units and become unit holders in the unit trust. The pooled funds are then invested
by the Manager across a range of investments in accordance with the investment guidelines contained in the
Investment Policy Statement.
Significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are
noted below. The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors of the Trustee and the Manager
on 24 September 2021.
NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Trust Deed, Companies Act 2015 and
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
(b)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and measurement
at amortized cost for liabilities except where otherwise stated.
In the application of IFRS, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgments made by
management in the application of IFRS that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant
notes to the financial statements.
The areas involving higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
critical to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying
transactions or other events is reported.
(c)

Comparatives

Where necessary, amounts relating to prior years have been reclassified to facilitate comparison and achieve
consistency in disclosure with current year amounts.
(d)

Functional and presentation currency

The Trust operates in Fiji and hence the financial statements are presented in Fiji dollars, which is the Trust’s
functional and presentation currency.
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Trust is set out in this note. The policies adopted
are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and unless stated otherwise are
consistent with those applied in the prior period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Assets

i.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.
ii.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI - debt investment;
FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Trust changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first reporting period following the change in the business model.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
•

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

•

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
•

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

•

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

•

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Trust may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment by investment basis.

•

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Trust may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Trust makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:
•

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

•

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Trust’s management;

•

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

ii.

Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

•

how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

•

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sale¬s activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Trust’s continuing recognition of the assets.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Trust considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Trust considers:
•

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

•

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;

•

prepayment and extension features; and

•

terms that limit the Trust’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.
Financial assets: Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Trust
changes its business model for managing financial assets
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Debt investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Financial assets: subsequent measurement and gains and losses (Cont’d)
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or
loss.
Equity investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
iii.

Derecognition

Financial assets
The Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Trust neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial
asset.
The Trust enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
Financial liabilities
The Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Trust also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non- cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.
iv.

Modifications of financial assets

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Trust recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying
amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a modification is carried out because of financial
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses.
v.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Trust currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(b)

Impairment of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments
The Trust recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. No impairment
loss is recognised on equity investment.
The Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, which are
measured as 12 month ECL:
•

bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Trust considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Trust’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b)

Impairment of Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (CONT)
The Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.
The Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:
•

Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

•

the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Trust considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the generally
understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
12 month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Trust
is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:
•

financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash 		
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Trust expects to receive); and

•

financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross 		
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

•

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired.
A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:
•

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

•

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

•

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Trust on terms that the Trust would not consider otherwise;

•

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

•

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Trust determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write‑off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Trust’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(c)

Revenue Recognition

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for all interest bearing financial assets using the effective interest
method.
Dividend income from listed or quoted securities is recognised when the right to receive payment is established
(normally the ex-dividend date). Dividends from unlisted and private equities are recognised when the Trust has
received formal notification that a dividend has been declared and the right to receive the dividend is established.
Other income is brought to account on an accrual basis.
(d)

Distributions

In accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trust may distribute, by cash or reinvestment, all distributable income to
unit holders. Distributable income is the Manager’s estimate, with the Trustee’s approval, of the amount the Trust
may distribute, not exceeding the net income of the Trust for an accrual period.
(e)

Management Fees

Management fees are standard fees stated under the terms of the Trust Deed and based on 1.55% on the value
of total Trust Fund. This is payable after creation end and is calculated on the net asset value of the unit trust at
the beginning of the next creation.
(f)

Trustee Fees

Trustee fees payable to FHL Trustees Limited has been fixed at $50,000 per annum.
(g)

Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for services provided to the Trust prior to the end of the financial year end
which are unpaid.
(h)

Entry Fees

The Manager is entitled under the Trust Deed to an entry fee of up to 3.5%. The entry fees only applies to units
that are purchased by unit holders.
(i)

Taxes

Income taxes
The Trust is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income is declared for distribution to unit
holders.
Value Added Tax (“VAT”)
The Trust is exempted from VAT.
(j)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within interest bearing borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.
(k)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount
has been reliably estimated.
Distributions are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
(l)

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
market to which the fund has access at that date. Consistent with established practice in Fiji, listed equity
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(l)

Fair Value Measurement (Cont’d)

investments are measured at the closing share price on the South Pacific Stock Exchange and Australian
Securities Exchange at each reporting date. Fiji Government Bonds are measured at the prices quoted by the
Reserve Bank of Fiji at each reporting date as adjusted for accrued interest where this is material.
When available, the Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if transactions for the asset or liabilities take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-going basis. The fair value of other
unlisted equities is estimated with the assistance of independent valuers approved by the Fund Manager and
Trustee as per the Trust Deed.
Where possible, the valuations use applicable price earnings ratios for similar listed companies, adjusted to
reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer and may be based on following methodologies:
1.

Discount Cashflow Model (DCF)

2.

Net Tangible Asset Approach (NTA)

3.

Future Maintainable Earnings Method (FME)

4.

Capitalization of Dividends Method (CoD)

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Trust uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique seeks
to incorporate all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. The
Trust recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during
which the changes have occurred.
NOTE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
In application of the Trust’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on various factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on various factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The critical judgments and assumptions made in applying the accounting policies of the Trust have been
disclosed under the following notes to the financial statements:
Note 3(l) and Note 8 - Fair Value Measurement.
NOTE 5. REVENUE AND EXPENSES		
(a)

Interest income

$

2021

2020

2,480,598

2,811,333

Interest income is earned from terms deposits, loans, government bonds and cash at bank balance. The interest
rate on term deposits ranged from 2.8% to 4.6% (2020: 3% to 7.2%), the interest rate on loans ranged from 3.5%
to 10.5% (2020: 3.5% to 11%), the interest rate on government bond ranged from 3.82% to 13% (2020: 4% to
7%) and the interest rate on cash at bank balance ranged from 0.5% to 1.75% (2020: 0.5% to 1.3%) respectively.
(b)

Dividend income

$

1,433,880

1,491,881

12,000
8,060
18,000

12,000
12,000
4,537
-

Dividend income is earned from investment in shares in listed and unlisted entities.
(c)
Professional fees
		
Auditor’s remuneration
		
- audit fees – current year		
- audit fees – prior year		
- other services		
Valuation fees		
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38,060

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
NOTE 6. FAIR VALUE RESERVES
			
Net change in the fair value of financial assets at FVOCI		

$

This is represented by as follows:			
Balance as at 1 July		
Fair value gain on financial assets		
Transfer of cumulative fair value loss / (gain) upon sale of
listed equities and government bonds measured at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income to net income
available for distribution		
Balance as at 30 June		

28,537

2021

2020

30,816,046

30,639,024

30,639,024
176,024

28,757,202
4,980,942

998

(3,099,120)

30,816,046

30,639,024

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments and bonds
until these financial assets are derecognised, disposed or impaired.
NOTE 7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
			
(a)
Loans
On-call facility		
Term loans (i)		
		
(b)
Term deposits			
Short-term deposits		
Long-term deposits (ii)		
		
(c)
Other receivables 		
Accrued interest income		
Accrued dividend income		
		
Sundry debtor (iii)		
Less: allowance for impairment loss		
Total financial assets at amortised cost

2,000,000
6,180,095
8,180,095

2,000,000
9,995,990
11,995,990

34,541,094
3,500,000
38,041,094

29,086,043
4,000,000
33,086,043

284,069
400,975
685,044
41,147
(11,075)
715,116

676,706
494,688
1,171,394
72,175
(28,672)
1,214,897

46,936,305

46,296,930

(i)

Term loans have a term of 6 to 36 months and earn interest at 3.5% to 10.5% per annum (2020: 3.5% to
11%).

(ii)

Long term deposits have a term of more than 12 months and earn interest at 3.85% to 4.3% per 		
annum (2020: 4.6%).
Sundry debtor relates to balance receivable from an agent, Post Fiji Pte Limited.

(iii)

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Listed equities			
Shares quoted on stock exchanges:			
South Pacific Stock Exchange
Australian Securities Exchange		
		
Unlisted equities 		
Shares in unlisted entities
Quoted managed fund		

Fiji Government Bonds

$

53,691,280
737,835

51,096,300
557,691

54,429,115

51,653,991

16,114,140
1,275,076

18,822,090
1,286,271

17,389,216

20,108,361

7,524,036

7,176,121
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Total financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income $
79,342,367
78,938,473
NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTD)
Fiji Government Bonds ( Contd)
Quoted shares
Consistent with established practice in Fiji, listed equity investments are measured at the closing share price on
the South Pacific Stock Exchange and Australian Securities Exchange at each reporting date.
Unquoted shares
Unquoted investments have been designated as fair value through other comprehensive income where fair value
has been assessed based on the valuation done by an independent valuer, Simmons Corporate Finance (2020:
Manager).
Unrealised net change in fair value of financial assets as at balance date is $30,816,046 (2020:
$30,639,024).
Determining fair values
The Trust measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:
Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in active market for an identical instrument.
Level 2: Valuation technique based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived
from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active market for similar
instrument; quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in the market that are considered less than active;
or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments
where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have
a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on
quoted price for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumption are required to
reflect differences between the instruments. Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are
based on quoted prices or dealer price quotations. For unlisted equity investments, the Trust determines fair
values using valuation techniques.
Some or all of the significant inputs these valuations use may not be observable in the market and are derived
from market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions.
Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management judgment
and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are usually required for
selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used and any key assumptions used in those valuation models
such as appropriate price/earnings ratios.
The table below analyses financial assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$

$

$

$

54,429,115

-

-

54,429,115

Shares in unlisted entities

-

3,275,076

14,114,140

17,389,216

Government bonds

-

7,524,036

-

7,524,036

54,429,115

10,799,112

14,114,140

79,342,367

51,653,991

-

-

51,653,991

-

3,286,271

16,822,090

20,108,361

At 30 June 2021
Listed equities

At 30 June 2020
Listed equities
Shares in unlisted entities
Government bonds
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-

7,176,121

-

7,176,121

51,653,991

10,462,392

16,822,090

78,938,473
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NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTD)
Determining fair values ( Contd)
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values as
well as the significant unobservable inputs used.
Type

Valuation Technique

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable
inputs and fair value
measurements

Shares in
unlisted
entities

Dividend’s capitalization technique –
The valuation model is based on the
future maintainable dividends and
capitalization rates.

Forecasted
dividend yield
4% to 10%
(2020: 4% to 8%)

The estimated fair value
would increase / (decrease)
if any of the significant
unobservable
inputs
were changed. Generally,
a change in the growth
rate is accompanied by
directionally similar change
in
future
maintainable
dividends and earnings.

Not applicable

Not applicable

Shares held in unit trust of Fiji are
valued at the exit price as at reporting
date.

Government
bonds

Market comparison – The fair value of
the long term investment securities
is based on market prices published
by the Reserve
Bank of Fiji.

Fair value of assets included in Level 3 are based on independent valuation conducted by Simmons
Corporate Finance.
During the financial year 30 June 2021, there were no transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels
mentioned above. The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
balances for Level 3 fair value hierarchy:
		
Balance as at 1 July
Gain included in OCI
- Net change in fair value		
Balance as at 30 June

$

2021

2020

16,822,090

17,054,590

(2,707,950)

(232,500)

14,114,140

16,822,090

Sensitivity analysis
For the fair values of equity securities categorized as Level 3, a reasonably possible change of 5% decreased
in the capitalization rates at the reporting date to the forecasted dividend yield holding other inputs
constant would have the following effect:
Increase in Other Comprehensive Income

672,108

811,785

An increase in the capitalization rate of 5% at 30 June 2021 would have resulted in an equal but opposite
effect to the amounts shown above.
NOTE 9.		

NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

Final distribution payable to unit holders

881,466

2,123,240
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NOTE 10.
OTHER INCOME		
Reversal of allowance for impairment loss
Reversal of prior year over accrual
Stale and unpresented cheques reversed
Miscellaneous income

NOTE 11.
PAYABLES		
Trust clearing
Sundry creditors
Accruals

NOTE 12.
UNIT HOLDERS’ EQUITY			
Unit holders’ equity – 144,191,798 units (2020: 139,760,222 units)
NOTE 13.

$

17,598
-

128,642
22,500
83,095
43,438

17,598

277,675

178,057
92,900
94,494

179,157
207,190
61,726

365,451

448,073

98,959,434

94,677,065

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Contingent liabilities
		
The Trustee and the Manager are not aware of any contingent liabilities at balance date (2020: $Nil).
Capital commitments
			
There were no capital commitments at balance date (2020: $Nil).
Operating lease commitments			
There were no operating lease commitments at balance date (2020: $Nil).
NOTE 14.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balance with bank. Cash and cash equivalents included
in the statement of cash flow comprise the following statement of financial position amounts:
		

2021

2020

Cash at bank

$

4,743,725

2,651,999

Total cash and cash equivalents

$

4,743,725

2,651,999

NOTE 15.
(a)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Identity of related parties

Manager
The Manager of the Trust is FHL Fund Management Limited (“FFML”). The directors of FFML during the year were:
Mr Nesbitt Hazelman (Chairman) - appointed on 14 December 2020
Ms Eseta Nadakuitavuki – appointed on 14 December 2020
Mr Alphonsus Pio Nataniela - appointed on 14 December 2020
Mr Abilash Ram
Mr Naushad Ali - appointed on 15 December 2020
Ms Kalpana Lal (Chairperson) - resigned on 20 December 2020
Mr Murgessan Pillay - resigned on 31 July 2020
Mr Roveen Permal - resigned on 27 November 2020
Ms Ana Tuiketi - resigned on 20 December 2020
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NOTE 15.
(a)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D)

Identity of related parties ( Cont’d)

Trustee
The Trustee of the Trust is FHL Trustees Limited (“FTL”). The directors of FTL during the year were:
Mr. Inia Naiyaga (Chairman) - appointed on 11 July 2020
Mr Nesbitt Hazelman (Chairman) - resigned on 14 December 2020
Mr. Emitai Boladuadua
Mr. Navin Raj
Others
The Trust holds investments with companies in the Fijian Holdings Group, including Fijian Holdings Limited,
Merchant Finance Pte Limited and RB Patel Group Limited. FHL Stockbrokers Limited acts as broker for the
Trust’s listed investments.
(b)

Transactions with related parties

(i)

Transactions with Fijian Holdings Limited and its related parties

Related party

Nature of transaction		

Fijian Holdings Limited

Distributions
Interest income		
Management fees		
Manager’s entry, rounding
fees and other expenses
Distributions		
Dividend income		
Interest income		
Stock broking fees		
Dividend income		
Interest income		
Dividend income		
Dividend income		
Interest income		
Dividend income		

FHL Fund Management Limited
				
Fiji Televison Limited
Pacific Cement Pte Limited
FHL Stockbrokers Limited
RB Patel Group Limited
Pernix (Fiji) Pte Limited
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited
Merchant Finance Pte Limited
(ii)

$

2021

2020

(171,960)
277,500
(2,021,713)

(251,013)
344,569
(2,060,432)

(410,146)
(7,312)
92,198
7,620
121,628
147,500
275,000
373,968
375,000

(497,641)
(144)
32,474
69,566
91,816
201,013
158,250
40,000
275,000
564,150
1,135,000

FHL Trustees Limited (“FTL”)

Trustee fees payable to FHL Trustees Limited has been fixed at $50,000 per annum. During the year, fees to FTL
amounted to $50,000 (2020: $50,000).
(iii)

Owing by related parties

Fijian Holdings Limited
Merchant Finance Pte Limited
Pacific Cement Pte Limited
Pernix (Fiji) Pte Limited
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited

(iv)
Owing to related parties
		
Owing to FHL Fund Management Limited
Owing to FHL Trustees Limited
Owing to FHL Stockbrokers Limited

(v)
Term deposits
		
Merchant Finance Pte Limited

6,150,000
30,559
738,428
1,344,792
-

6,172,808
36,020
916,669
1,540,000
275,000

8,263,779

8,940,497

92,900
2,083
-

119,775
2,083
70,179

94,983

192,037

11,700,000

9,000,000
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NOTE 15.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (cont’d)

(vi)

Shares in related parties

2021

Listed securities		
RB Patel Group Limited
Fiji Television Limited

Unlisted securities
Merchant Finance Pte Limited
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited		
Pernix (Fiji) Pte Limited		

NOTE 16.

2020

14,769,370
4,048,209

15,036,812
3,148,607

$

18,817,579

18,185,419

$

9,000,000
4,714,150
399,990

13,200,000
3,222,100
399,990

$

14,114,140

16,822,090

TRUST DETAILS

Date of formation
The Trust was established on 27 April 2001 and has a life of 60 years from its inception.
Registered office and principal place of business
The Trust’s registered office and principal place of business is located at Shop 1A and 1B, Vanua Arcade, 77
Victoria Parade, Suva.
NOTE 17.		

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

In July 2021, the directors declared the final dividend of $793,022 for the year ended 30 June 2021.
Apart from this and the continuing impact of COVID-19 into 2022 financial year, there has been no transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations
of the Trust, the results of those operations or state of affairs of the Trust in subsequent financial year.
NOTE 18.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Trust has exposure to the following risks:
•
•
•
•
•

Market risk;
Operational risk;
Credit risk;
Liquidity risk and
Foreign exchange risk

This note presents information about the Trust’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Trust’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Trust’s management of funds.
The Manager has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust’s risk management
framework. The Trust’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Trust, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Trust’s activities.
Market risk
(i)

Interest rate

This is the risk borne by interest bearing assets such as term deposits, loans and bonds due to the changes in
interest rate. Through its investment policy the Trust will aim to balance its portfolio through short term deposits
and medium to long term government bonds and loans. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the
Trust’s interest bearing financial instruments carrying amounts were:
Fixed rate instrument		
Loans
Term deposits		
Bonds		
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$

8,180,095
38,041,094
7,524,036

11,995,990
33,086,043
7,176,121

$

53,745,225

52,258,154
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NOTE 18.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

Market risk (Cont’d)
Fair value sensitivity analysis
The Trust does not account for any financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit.
(ii)

Performance

This relates to the risk that the Manager’s investment selection may not achieve the objective of the Trust
or produce acceptable returns for unit holders.
All unit holders (including potential ones) are fully informed of the risks involved.
(iii)

Conflicts of interests

Conflicts of interests between the Trust, Fijian Holdings Limited (“FHL”), FHL Fund Management Limited
(“FFML”) and FHL Trustees Limited (“FTL”) may exist and also arise in the future in a number of areas
relating to FHL past and on-going relationships, including potential acquisition or dispositions of business
or real properties, payment of dividends and FHL and FFML management arrangements.
Under the Trust Deed, written approval is required from the Trustee for any Trust dealings with the
associates of the Manager.
(iv)

Political climate

The Trust operates in Fiji and changes to governments and the policies they implement may affect the
overall economic situation and ultimately the returns of the Trust. To address this, the Trust reviews its
pricing and investment portfolios regularly and responds to change in policies appropriately. In addition,
changes to the Government’s tax policies may impact on the returns of the Trust.
(v)

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market. Different investments (cash, shares, bonds) tend to perform differently
under the same operating environment.
Sensitivity analysis
The table below sets out the effect on net assets attributable to unit holders and profit or loss of a
reasonably possible weakening in the individual equity market prices of listed equities of 5% at 30 June.
The estimates are made on an individual investment basis. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest and foreign currency rates, remain constant.
		
Net loss from exchange-traded equity investments

$

2021

2020

2,684,564

2,554,815

A strengthening in the individual equity market price of 5% at 30th June would have resulted in an equal
but opposite effect to the amounts shown above.
Operational risk
(i)

Legal risk

Legal risks refer to the risk of being legally non-compliant due to changes in Government and Regulators’
current policies and regulations.
The Manager has an independent compliance officer who reports directly to the FHL Group Chief Executive
Officer and the Compliance Committee. The Manager monitors changes to regulations for compliance and
implementation of market best practices.
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NOTE 18.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

Operational risk (Cont’d)
(ii)

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk arising from the Trust’s and its related entities business functions and from
the practical implementation of the Manager’s strategy for growing the Trust.
The Manager has developed an operations manual to deal with all operational processes in line with necessary
regulations.
The Manager also conducts third party due diligence on new investments.
(iii)

Data risk

This is the risk of losing information including unit holder account details even though there is a dual system
storage of a hard copy filing system and electronic database.
The manager ensures confidentiality and security of all unit holders’ information. The trust has developed a
database system to store more information, conducts daily backups of electronic information and has developed
a disaster recovery plan.
Credit risk
This refers to the risk of losing investment funds due to companies and financial institutions in which the Trust
has provided loans, defaulting on their repayments of principal or interest or both.
The Trust will minimize risk by conducting thorough due diligence on any investments it makes, ensure that
there are guarantees on these investments by principal stakeholders or sister companies, limit the amount that
is given as loans and implement certain conditions to allow the Trust to collect the funds.
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was:
		
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans		
Term deposits		
Bonds		
Other receivables		

2021

2020

$

4,743,725
8,180,095
38,041,094
7,524,036
715,116

2,651,999
11,995,990
33,086,043
7,176,121
1,214,897

$

59,204,066

56,125,050

Foreign exchange risk
The Trust is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures since it has shares in Australian
Securities Exchange. However, changes in the exchange rate by 10% (increase or decrease) are not expected
to have a significant impact on the net income and equity balances currently reflected in the Trust’s financial
statements.
Liquidity risk
This is the risk that the Trust will not be able to facilitate its unit holders’ redemption request. The Trust aims to
maintain a buffer fund in liquid assets at all times to meet expected normal redemptions. Under the Trust Deed,
the manager, with the concurrence of the Trustee, may suspend the redemption of units for such time as may
be necessary to realize sufficient liquid funds to meet any unusual redemption requests. The Trust managers its
liquidity risk by investing at least 30% of total portfolio into short term deposit.
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NOTE 18. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (CONTD)
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)
Liquidity risk ( Contd)
The table below analyses the Trust’s financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

At 30 June 2021
Financial assets
Listed and unlisted securities
Bonds
Term deposits
Loans
Other receivables

Financial liabilities
Payables
At 30 June 2020
Financial assets
Listed and unlisted securities
Bonds
Term deposits
Loans
Other receivables

Financial liabilities
Payables

No specific
Maturity
$

Less than
1 year
$

Between 1
and 2 years
$

Between 3
and 5 years
$

Over 5 years

Total

$

$

69,818,331
2,000,000
-

90,000
1,131,616
35,268,089
401,830
726,191

2,081,123
945,281
137,000
4,361,953
-

2,007,565
3,632,284
2,122,701
-

5,512,063
-

71,989,454
9,596,525
39,037,373
8,886,484
726,191

71,818,331

37,617,726

7,525,357

7,762,550

5,512,063

130,236,027

-

365,451

-

-

-

365,451

69,762,352
2,000,000
-

2,090,137
746,196
29,651,745
4,864,972
1,243,569

1,121,111
4,033,397
1,716,541
-

1,806,061
12,873
4,167,623
-

6,264,770
-

71,852,489
9,938,139
33,698,015
12,749,136
1,243,569

71,762,352

38,567,947

6,871,049

5,986,557

6,264,770

129,481,347

-

448,073

-

-

-

448,073
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